
expression and had acquired juridical personality. 
Those were not the results of the resolution of 
29 November alone. The United Nations had 
not then built in a vacuum but upon the basis 
of the facts which had been ascertained through 
the United Nations Special Committee on Pales­
tine. The work which had been done in Pales­
tine since 1922 by the Jewish people had not been 
in vain, for the General Assembly had recognized 
the principle of a Jewish national home. The 
As~embly had proclaimed the rights of both Jews 
and Arabs to independence. This was the first 
time in history that two nations had been brought 
to independence by a constitutional international 
organization through the processes of law, rather 
than by the sword. \Vhen the l\Iandate came to 
an end, the recognition given by 18 nations to 
the State of Israel had borne out the realism of 
the General Assembly resolution. 

The fact that the other State provided for had 
not yet taken form did not afiect the fact of the 
social maturity of its people. The Uruguayan 
delegation repeated its sincere hope that these 
people might have, nevertheless, a fruitful and 
peaceful existence. Developments in Palestine 
had had serious repercussions and, quite apart 
from the battles, some 500,000 Arab refugees 
had been driven from the territory awarded to 
them by the 29 November resolution. It seemed 
impossible that this could have occurred. However, 
now the Assembly could seek justice for these 
destitute refugees in their exile, as they had 
sought it for the Jews who fled from Europe. The 
General Assembly had given a territorial solution 
to the Jewish problem; it now wished to avoid 
this mass migration. The question of race, creed 
or religion made no difierence when the matter 
before the Assembly concerned the rights and 
welfare of refugees. 

The problem which the Assembly had tried to 
settle had given rise to a war. The Uruguayan 
delegation "'ished to contribute to the promotion 
of peace through the present debate on the new 
phase of the Palestine problem. It firmly sup­
ported the proposal for a conciliation commission 
and would in due course give an opinion upon the 
concrete terms which the resolution establishing 
that commission should contain. 

The meeting rose at 1.05 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED 
AND ELEVENTH MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Wednesday, 24 November 1948, at 3 p.m. 

Chairman : Mr. A. CosTA du RELS (Bolivia). 

Cet Etat existe d'une fa<;on tangible. II constitue 
une realite geographique ; il a acquis la person­
nalite juridique. Tout cela ne resulte pas 
simplement de la resolution du 29 novembre. En 
l'adoptant, !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
n'a pas travaille dans le vide ; elle s'est fondee 
sur des faits constates par la Commission speciale 
des Nations Unies pour la Palestine. L'reuvre 
que le peuple juif a accomplie en Palestine 
depuis 1922 n'a pas ete vaine, puisque l'Assemblee 
generale a reconnu le principe du Foyer national. 
Elle a proclame le droit a l'independance des 
Juifs et des Arabes. Pour la premiere fois dans 
1 'histoire, une organisation internationale a 
apporte l'independance a deux peuples, et cela 
par des moyens juridiques, et non a la force 
de l'epee. Lorsque le mandat est venu a expi­
ration, la reconnaissance que 18 Etats ont 
accordee a l'Etat d'Israel a montre que Ia 
resolution adoptee par l'Assemblee generale etait 
une decision realiste. 

L'autre :Etat, dont la creation avait ete prevue, 
n'a pas ete constitue; mais ce fait ne prouve 
pas que sa population n'est pas parvenue a 
la maturite. La delegation de l'Uruguay exprime 
a nouveau son espoir le plus sincere que cette 
population aura la possibilite de mener une 
existence paisible et feconde. Les evenements 
de Palestine ont eu de graves repercussions ; 
sans parler des combats, quelque 500.000 
rCfugies arabes ont etc chasses du territoire 
qui leur avait etc attribue en vertu de la reso­
lution du 29 novembre. II semble difficile de 
croire que cela s'est vraiment produit. Toutefois, 
de meme que l'Assemblee a cherchC a apporter 
une solution equitable au probleme des Juifs qui 
fuyaient l'Europe, elle peut s'efforcer maintenant 
d'en faire autant pour ces refugies demunis de 
toute ressource dans leur exil. L' Assemblee 
generale a apporte au probleme juif une solution 
territoriale ; elle desire actuellement eviter cet 
exode. Les questions de race, de croyance, de 
religion importent peu lorsqu'il s'agit des. droits 
et du bien-etre de refugies. 

Le problcme que l'Assemblee s'est efforcee 
de regler a donne lieu a une guerre. La delegation 
de !'Uruguay voudrait que son intervention 
au cours du present debat, consacre a la nouvelle 
phase du problcme palestinien, contribue au 
retablissement de la paix. Elle appuie fermement 
la proposition tendant a constituer une commis­
sion de conciliation ; en temps voulu, elle se 
prononcera de fa<;on precise sur les dispositions 
que la resolution devra comporter. 

La seance est levee a 13 h 5. 

DEUX-CENT-ONZIEME SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le mercredi 24 novembre 1948, ii. 15 heures. 

President: M. A. CosTA nu RELS (Bolivie). 

740 



80. Continuation of the 
the progress report 
Nations Metliator 
(A;/648) 

discussion on 
of the United 
on Palestine 

Mr. KISELEV (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist 
Republic) . stated that the problem before the 
United Nations was to implement the General 
Assembly resolution of 29 November 1947 for 
the partition of Palestine and the establishment 
of two independent States. 

Although the Palestine problem had already 
been brought before the General Assembly of 
the United Nations three times, and although both 
the Security Council and various other organs 
of the United Nations had already dealt with 
the question, no result had been achieved. The 
fact that even the Security Council had been 
unable to implement the United Nations decision 
was due to the fact that certain Members had 
not abided by the terms of resolution 181 (II) 
of 29 November 1947. The present situation 
clearly illustrated the inevitable results of repu­
diating the very principles of the Charter, and 
in particular the principles proclaimed in its 
Preamble. The conclusion was therefore obvious: 
the resolution of 29 Novemb~r 1947 must be put 
into effect. 

The General Assembly had before it a plan 
proposed by the Mediator. Exceeding the man­
date he had been given, the Mediator on his own 
initiative had drawn up a new plan, involving 
boundary adjustments in favour of Transjordan, 
although the rights of Transjordan in the matter 
were not very clear. The Mediator, however, 
spoke of the historical and common ties uniting 
Palestine and Transjordan ; and the main trend 
of his plan was to heap favours on Transjordan, 
which was to receive, in particular, the Negeb. 

What was the ongm of that strange plan ? 
In order to reply to that question, a study must 
be made of British policy, which was based on 
certain special interests in Palestine and the 
Middle East. From the moment when the 
decision of 29 November 1947 was taken the 
United Kingdom had made every endeavour to 
prevent it from being carried out and had veered 
to and between the Arabs and the Jews, whilst 
at the same time entering into complicated man­
reuvres in its' relations with the United States. 
First and foremost, the aim of the United King­
dom had been to fan hatred between the Arabs 
and the Jews: between 1 December 1947 and 
1 March 1948, 381 Jews had been killed and 
783 wounded. 

When the United Kingdom realized that it 
could not nullify the decision of 29 November, 
it had attempted to destroy the Jewish State by 
using the armies of the Arab States. When that 
too failed, the United Kingdom had re~ourse to 
a Mediator, in a further attempt to get rid of the 
Jewish State, the existence of which it regarded 
as a threat. 

The chief responsibility for the hostilities in 
Palestine lay with the United Kingdom and with 
the United States. Long before the end of the 
Mandate, the Mandatory Power had authorized 

80. Suite de la discussion sur le rapport 
interimaire du Mediateur des Nations 
Unies pour la Palestine (A/648) 

M. KISSELEV (Republique socialiste sovietique 
de Bielorussie) declare que le probleme qui se 
pose a !'Organisation des Nations Unies est celui 
de !'execution de la resolution de l'Assemblee 
generale du 29 novembre 1947 relative au partage 
de la Palestine et a l'etablissement de deux Etats 
independants. 

Bien que le probleme palestinien soit deja venu 
trois fois devant l'Assemblee generale des Nations 
Unies et que le Conseil de securite, ainsi que divers 
autres organismes de !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies aient deja traite de cette question, aucun 
resultat n'a ete obtenu. Si le Conseil de securite 
lui-meme n'a pu assurer !'execution de la decision 
de !'Organisation des Nations Unies, c'est qu'un 
certain nombre de Membres ne se sont pas 
conformes ala resolution 181 (II) du 29 novembre 
1947. La situation actuelle illustre clairement Jes 
consequences inevitables d'une telle meconnais­
sance des principes memes de la Charte, notam­
ment de ceux qui sont enonces dans le Preambule. 
La conclusion s'impose done : il faut assurer 
!'execution de la resolution du 29 novembre 1947. 

Or l' Assemblee generale se trouve aujourd'hui 
en presence d'une initiative du Mediateur, qui, 
allant bien au dela de la tache qui lui avait ete 
assignee, a pris !'initiative d'etablir un plan 
nouveau, en vertu duquel une modification des 
frontieres serait operee au benefice de la Transjor­
danie, dont on ne voit pas tres bien quels sont 
les titres en la matiere. Le Mectiateur parle 
pourtant des liens historiques et des liens communs 
qui unissent la Palestine et la Transjordanie ; et 
J'idee maitresse de son plan consiste a combler de 
largesses la Transjordanie, qui se verrait notam­
ment attribuer le Negeb. 

QueUe est l'origine de ce plan etrange ? Pour 
pouvoir repondre a cette question, il convient de 
considerer Ja politique britannique, fondee sur 
certains interets speciaux en Palestine et dans 
Ie Moyen Orient. Des que flit prise la decision 
du 29 novembre 1947, Ie Royaume-Uni s'est 
efforce d'en empecher !'execution et il a louvoye 
entre les Arabes et les Juifs tout en se livrant 
egalement a certaines manceuvres dans ses 
relations avec Ies :Etats-Unis. Avant tout, le 
Royaume-Uni s'est efforce d'attiser la haine 
entre Juifs et Arabes: du 1er decembre 1947 au 
1 er mars 1948, 381 Juifs ont ete tues et 783 blesses. 

Lorsque Ie Royaume-Uni a constate qu'il 
ne pouvait reduire a neant la decision du 
29 novembre, il s'est efforce de liquider l'Etat 
juif en se servant des forces armees des Etats 
arabes. Puis, lorsque cette nouvelle manceuvre 
eut echoue, le Royaume-Uni recourut a un 
Mediateur pour se debarrasser de la menace que 
lui semblait constituer !'existence d'un Etat juif. 

Avec Ies Etats-Unis, le Royaume-Uni est le 
principal responsable des hostilites en Palestine. 
Bien avant la fin du Mandat, Ia Puissance manda­
taire avait autorise !'entree en Palestine de la 

741 



the entry into Palestine of an Arab Legion which 
was reinforced by Nazi officers formely interned 
in camps in Egypt. After the t ermination of 
the :\landate, moreover, British officials had 
" voluntarily " offered their services to that 
same King Abdullah who was to be the chief 
beneficiary of the Mediator's plan, which had in 
fact been rejected by the Arabs as well as by the 
Jews. If confirmation of those facts were needed, 
it would be found in the statement made in the 
Assembly by l\Ir. McNeil and in the United 
Kingdom draft resolution. They sufficed to show 
that the J\1ediator's proposals in fact represented 
the last word in British policy. 

As regards the United States, since the decision 
on the partition of Palestine, its Government 
had been subjected to strong pressure from mili­
tary circles and United States oil companies. 
The United States had then refused to help in 
the establishment of the new Jewish State, and, 
on the contrary, attempted to wreck the partition 
plan. Indeed, the United States had taken the 
initiative in calling a second special session and 
had proposed placing Palestine under a Trus­
teeship System, while declaring herself the cham­
pion of both Jewish and Arab interests. When 
the proposal for placing Palestine under trus­
teeship was rejected, the United States and the 
United Kingdom had proposed the appointment 
of a Mediator. It was then that, on various 
pretexts, the British and the Americans poured 
into Palestine, while the United States tried to 
come to an agreement with the United Kingdom, 
at the expense of the Jews. 

But even the United States and the United 
Kingdom had had to take into account the 
existence of a Jewish State which had proved 
its right to exist, and which had been recognized, 
de jure or de facto, by 18 States. Like other 
States before it, Israel was born of an armed 
struggle for liberty and independence. Thus 
one of the principal provisions of the resolution 
of 29 November had been implemented ; although 
other provisions, such as that relating to the 
establishment of an Arab State, had not yet 
been put into effect. 

The Byelorussian delegation was unreservedly 
in favour of partition, which it considered the 
cnly possible and just solution. 

Contrary to what had been insinuated, the 
USSR had always supported Arab aspirations. 
But the Arabs were no longer fighting for their 
national interests or for their independence, but 
for Anglo-American oil interests, which were 
seeking to maintain a colonial system in Palestine. 
Only by implementation of the decision of 29 No­
vember could bloodshed be ended and peace 
restored in the Middle East. 

The Byelorussian delegation was more sympa­
thetic than any other to national liberation 
movements. The Byelorussian SSR would cele­
brate its thirtieth anniversary in January 1949, 
and had shown how such problems should be 
solved, in that spirit of friendship between all 
peoples which Marshal Stalin had described as 
constituting a great achievement of the Soviet 
system. In Palestine, on the contrary, as in 

Legion arabe, que sont venus renforcer des officiers 
nazis anterieurement detenus dans des camps 
egyptiens. D'autre part, a !'expiration du Mandat, 
des fonctionnaires britanniques ant « volon­
tairement )) loue leurs services a ce meme roi 
Abdullah qui serait le principal beneficiaire des 
plans du Mediateur, d'ailleurs rejetes aussi bien 
par les Arabesque par les Juifs. Si ces faits avaient 
besoin d'une confirmation, Ia declaration faite 
ici par M. McNeil ainsi que le projet de resolution 
du Royaume-Uni repondraient a cette exigence, 
et suffiraient a montrer que les propositions du 
Mediateur representent bien Ie dernier mot de 
la politique britannique. 

En ce qui concerne le Gouvernement des Etats­
Unis, il a ete soumis, apres Ia decision relative au 
partage de Ia Palestine, a une forte pression de Ia 
part des cercles militaires et des compagnies 
petrolieres des Etats-Unis. C'est alors que les 
Etats-Unis ont refuse de faciliter l'etablissement 
du nouvel Etat juif et que, tout au contraire, ils 
sc sont efTorces de s'opposer au plan de partage. 
Ce sont, en effet, les Etats-Unis qui ant pris !'ini­
tiative de la deuxieme session extraordinaire et 
qui ant propose de placer Ia Palestine sous le 
Regime de tutelle, alors qu'ils se disaient les 
protecteurs a Ia fois des interets juifs et des interets 
arabes. Lorsque Ia proposition relative au Regime 
de tutelle eu t ete repoussee, ce sont encore les 
Anglo-Americains qui ant propose Ia nomination 
d'un Mectiateur, et c'est alors que, sous difTerents 
pretextes, les Anglo-Americains ailluerent en 
Palestine, alors que les Etats-Unis s'effon;aient 
de parvenir a un accord avec le Royaume-Uni 
aux depens des Juifs. 

Sans doute les Etats-Unis et le Royaume-Uni 
eux-memes ont-ils dfl tenir compte de !'existence 
d'un Etat juif qui s'est avere viable et a ete 
reconnu de jure ou de facto par 18 Etats. Comme 
d'autres Etats avant lui, Israel est ne d'une lutte 
armee pour Ia liberte et l'independance. Ainsi 
s'est trouvee mise a execution l'une des principales 
dispositions de Ia resolution du 29 novembre, bien 
que d'autres dispositions, telle que I'etablissement 
d'un Etat arabe par exemple, n'etaient pas mises 
a execution. 

La delegation de la RSS de Bielorussie se 
prononce categoriquement en faveur de la solution 
du partage qu'elle considere comme Ia seule solu­
tion possible et equitable. 

Contrairement a ce qui a ete insinue, J'URSS a 
toujours defendu les aspirations arabes mais 
aujourd'hui ce n'est pas pour leurs interets 
nationaux ni pour leur independance que les 
Arabes combattent, mais pour les interets 
petroliers des Anglo-Americains qui cherc~ent a 
assurer le maintien d'un systeme coloma! en 
Palestine. Seule !'execution de Ia decision du 
29 novembre mettra fin a l'efTusion de sang et 
retablira Ia paix dans Je Moyen Orient. 

La delegation de la RSS de Bieloru~sie est plus 
qu'aucune autre en pleine s~mpathie avec les 
mouvements de liberation natwnale. La RSS de 
Bielorussie, qui ceiebrera en ja~vier 1949 son 
trentieme anniversaire, a montre comment de 
tels problemes devaient etre resolus, dans cet 
esprit d'amitie entre to~s les , peup~es dont ~e 
marechal Staline a dit qu Il representa1t un suc.ces 
considerable du systeme sovietique. Au contra1re, 

742 



Ts~rist ~ussia, national discord was being arti­
ficially kindled by Powers in pursuit of their 
own interests. 

In order to thwart those designs, as injurious 
to the Arabs as they were to the Jews, the United 
Nations must ensure the withdrawal of all foreign 
troops from Palestine ; and it was incumbent 
on the Security Council to take steps to prevent 
the renewal of military action and to restore 
peace in Palestine. 

The General Assembly should reject the draft 
resolution of the United Kingdom (AJC.l }394) 
which was contrary to the decision of 29 November 
1947. The Byelorussian delegation was opposed 
to the transfer of certain parts of Palestine, and 
in particular the Negeb, to Transjordan. Adop­
tion of that proposal would mean placing four­
fifths of Palestine indirectly under the control 
of the United Kingdom. 

The decision of the General Assembly resolution 
regarding Jerusalem must be carried out and a 
Trusteeship System put into effect. Mediation 
must be abandoned, since it had succeeded neither 
in restoring peace nor in maintaining law and 
order. In short, the Palestine question could only 
be solved by implementing the decision of 29 
November 1947 and setting up two independent 
States in Palestine. 

U. PE KmN (Burma) declared that the General 
Assembly was being asked to accept a fait accompli, 
based on force of arms, and not on law and justice. 

The fact that both parties had violated the 
truce was no reason for accepting the results of 
that violation as a just and lawful settlement. 
The General Assembly's decision should be based 
on moral standards. The Burmese delegation, for 
its part, could not subscribe to a kind of " political 
realism " which would mean acceptance by the 
United Nations of the fait accompli, always 
and everywhere. It believed that the Palestine 
question was first of all a minority problem. 
The establishment of new States on territory 
carved out of the States within which those 
minority problems arose was not the only solution 
of a problem of that kind. To increase the 
number of new States endlessly would moreover . 
be absurd. A much better method was to accord 
minorities favourable treatment, fair represen­
tation in national parliaments, social advantages, 
etc. 

In the case of Palestine, to solve the problem 
by setting up a new State was all the more unac­
ceptable because the Jewish minority had attemp­
ted to gain its ends by force of arms and with 
the aid of foreign interests. In the opinion of 
the Burmese delegation, the United Nations could 
not accept a fait accompli which would constitute 
a threat to the very existence of the Organization. 

Mr. ZuLOAGA (Venezuela) recalled that his 
delegation had voted for the partition of Palestine 
in November 1947, and that his Government had 

en Palestine comme dans la Russie des tsars, les 
antagonismes nationaux se sont trouves attises 
artificiellement par des Puissances qui ne 
cherchent qu'a poursuivre leurs propres interets. 

Pour faire echec a ces plans, aussi prejudiciables 
aux Arabes qu'aux Juifs, !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies doit assurer Ie retrait de Palestine 
de toutes les troupes etrangeres et il appartient 
au Conseil de securite de prendre les mesures qui 
empecheront toute nouvelle action militaire et 
retabliront la paix en Palestine. 

L' Assemblee generale do it rejeter le pro jet de 
resolution du Royaume-Uni (AJC.1J394) qui 
est contraire a la decision du 29 novembre 1947. 
La RSS de Bielorussie se declare opposee a !'attri­
bution a la Transjordanie de certaines regions de 
Palestine et en particulier du Negeb, ce qui aurait 
pour effet de placer indirectement sous le controle 
du Royaume-Uni les quatre cinquiemes de Ia 
Palestine. 

La resolution de 1' Assemblee generale relative 
a Jerusalem doit d'autre part etre executee et un 
Regime de tutelle etabli. La mediation doit 
prendre fin puisqu'elle n'a abouti ni au retablis­
sement de Ia paix ni au maintien de I' ordre et de 
la loi. D'une maniere generale, la solution de Ia 
question de Palestine ne saurait resider que dans 
!'execution de la decision du 29 novembre 1947 
et dans r etablissement de deux :Etats inde­
pendants en Palestine. 

U PE KmN (Birmanie) declare que I' on demande 
a l' Assemblee generale d'accepter le fait accompli, 
fonde sur Ia force des armes non sur la justice 
et le droit. 

Le fait que les deux parties aient viole Ia treve 
ne saurait constituer une raison pour que l'on 
accepte le resultat de cette violation comme 
conforme au droit et a Ia justice. C'est sur des 
valeurs morales que doit etre fondee la decision 
de l' Assemblee generale. La delegation de 
Birmanie, pour sa part, ne saurait souscrire a un 
certain « realisme politique » en vertu duquel 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies se trouverait 
amenee a reconnaitre partout et toujours le fait 
accompli. Elle considere que Ia question de 
Palestine reside avant tout dans un probleme de 
minorite : or la creation de nouveaux :Etats, dont 
le territoire est preleve sur le territoire des entites 
geographiques au sein desquelles se pose un 
probleme de minorite, ne constitue pas la seule 
solution possible d'un probleme de ce genre. II y 
aurait d'ailleurs une certaine absurdite a multi­
plier sans fin le nombre des nouveaux Etats. Une 
formule bien preferable est constituee par !'octroi 
a ces minorites d'un traitement bienveillant, 
d'une representation equitable au sein des parle­
ments nationaux, d'avantages sociaux, etc. 

La solution consistant dans la creation d'un 
nouvel Etat serait d'autant moins admissible, 
dans le cas de la Palestine, que c'est par la force 
des armes et avec l'aide d'interets etrangers que 
la minorite juive a tente d'arriver a ses fins. 

La delegation de la Birmanie considere que 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies ne saurait 
accepter un semblable fait accompli qui consti­
tuerait une menace a son existence meme. 

M. ZuLOAGA (Venezuela) rappelle que sa dele­
gation avait vote en faveur du partage de Ia 
Palestine en novembre 1947 et que son Gouver-

743 



recognized the State of Israel. It was true that 
the Venezuelan delegation would have preferred 
the problem to be solved by the establishment 
of a unitary State or of a bi-national State with 
economic union. As it was impossible to impose 
such a solution by force on the two groups con­
cerned, the formation of two independent States 
was the only possible solution, as the Mandate 
was then drawing to a close. 

There was no doubt that the idea of partition 
had met with the approval of world opinion, but 
conditions in Palestine had become such as to 
constitute a threat to peace. It was through the 
efforts of the United Nations that the conflict 
had been restricted. 

Some delegations now recommended the appoint­
ment of a commission of conciliation to offer 
its good offices and assist the parties to 
arrive at a solution acceptable to both. The 
Venezuelan delegation favoured that proposal, 
but thought that individuals should be selected 
as members of the commission rather than States. 
That was, incidentally, the suggestion that had 
been made by the Venezuelan delegation when 
the United Nations Special Committee on Palestine 
had been set up, although it was not then 
adopted. The Venezuelan delegation reserved 
the right to put forward a formal proposal to 
that effect later. 

The Venezuelan delegation supported the 
general principles underlying the Australian draft 
resolution (AfC.l /396). Some of the principles 
proclaimed by the Canadian (206in meeting) and 
United States (A/C.l/397 /Rev.l) delegations 
might be included in that resolution ; they were 
in fact much closer to the Australian than to the 
British draft. 

l\1r. FEDERSPIEL (Denmark) thought that the 
situation in Palestine had greatly changed since 
adoption of the General Assembly's resolution of 
29 November 1947. At that time it seemed 
clear that apart from the plan of partition with 
economic union of the two States, no other 
solution was possible, although the minority plan 
of the United Nations Special Committee on 
Palestine and the Lebanese plan should have 
been given closer study. The Danish delegation 
had hesitated up to the last moment and then 
had voted in favour of the partition resolution 
in order to avoid the worst : fratricidal strife 
and chaos. Now, however, it had to be recog­
nized that the plan had failed and had become 
a dead letter, for, in order to succeed, it would 
have required the consent of the parties or the 
ability of the United Nations to see that it was 
respected. The only practical results of the 
General Assembly resolution had been the ending 
of the Mandate, the withdrawal of British troops 
and the proclamation of the State of Israel on 
15 May 1948, by a procedure which, let it be said 
in passing , was not in accordance with the pro­
visions of the Assembly resolution. 

Two facts served as a basis for the formation 
of the State of Israel. The first was the fact of 
partition. In that connexion, Mr. Federspiel 
recalled that the United Nations Special Commit­
tee on Palestine set up in 1947 had stated that 

nement a reconnu l'Etat d'Israel. Sans doute, la 
delegation du Venezuela aurait-elle prefere la 
solution d'un Etat unitaire ou celle d'un Etat 
bi-national avec union economique, mais comme 
il n'etait pas concevable qu'une t elle solution flit 
imposee par la force aux deux nationalites en 
presence, c'est la solution de l'etablissement de 
deux Etats independants qui s'est averee comme 
la seule possible puisque le Mandat prenait fin. 

Sans doute !'opinion publique mondiale a-t-elle 
accueilli avec faveur la solution du partage, mais 
les conditions soot devenues telles en Palestine 
que la paix s'est trouvee mise en peril. C'est alors 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies qui a reussi a 
attenuer le conflit. 

Aujourd'hui certaines delegations recom­
mandent l'etablissement d'une commission de 
conciliation qui preterait ses boos offices aux 
parties pour la recherche d'une solution mutuel­
lement acceptable. La delegation du Venezuela 
se prononce en faveur de cette formule, mais 
considere que des personnalites devraient etre 
choisies comme membres d'une telle commission, 
plutot que des Etats. C'est d'ailleurs ce qu'avait 
suggere la delegation du Venezuela lorsque la 
Commission speciale des Nations Unies pour la 
Palestine avait etc etablie mais cette solution 
n'avait pas etc retenue. La delegation du 
Venezuela se reserve de faire eventuellement une 
proposition formelle en ce sens. 

D'une maniere generale, la delegation du 
Venezuela se prononce en faveur des principes 
sur lesquels repose le pro jet de resolution (AfC.1 I 
396) de I' Australie auquel pourraient se trouver 
incorpores certains principes enonces par les 
delegations du Canada (206e seance) et des Etats­
Unis (A/C.l/397 fRev.1) et qui sont en realite bien 
plus proches du projet australien que du projet 
britannique. 

M. FEDERSPIEL (Danemark) estime que la 
situation en Palestine a fortement evolue depuis 
Ia resolution de l' Assemblee generale du 
29 novcmbre 1947. A cette epoque, il semblait 
clair que, en dehors du plan de partage de la 
Palestine avec union economique des deux Etats, 
ancune autre solution n'etait possible, quoique 
le plan de la minorite de la Commission speciale 
des Nations Unies pour Ia Palestine et le plan 
libanais eussent merite un examen plus attentif. 
La delegation du Danemark besita jusqu'au 
dernier moment et vota la resolution de partage, 
a l'epoque, pour eviter le pire : la lutte fratricide 
et le chaos. Aujourd'hui, il faut bien constater 
cependant que ce plan a echoue et qu'il est de_venu 
Iettre morte, car il aurait exige, pour reuss1r, le 
consentement des parties ou la capacite de !'Orga­
nisation des Nations Unies de le faire respecter. 
Les seuls resultats pratiques de cette resolution 
de I' Assemblee generale furent la fin du Mandat, 
le retrait des troupes britanniques et la procla­
mation de l'Etat d'lsrael, le 15 mai 1948, suivant 
une procedure qui, soit dit en passant, n'e~ait 
pas conforme aux dispositions de la resolutiOn 
de I' Assemblee. 

Deux faits sont a Ia base de la constitution de 
l'Etat d'lsrael · c'est d'abord le fait du partage. 
A ce sujet l'or;teur rappt;lle que Ia Commis~ion 
speciale des Nations Umes pour Ia ~ales~m~, 
creee en 1947, a constate que Ia Palestme eta1t 

744 



Palestine was in fact divided into two commu­
nities, although the boundaries of their territories 
were not clearly defined. The partition recom­
mended by the Special Committee was nothing 
new as it had already been contemplated as a 
possible future solution during the United King­
dom Mandate. In the previous year, partition 
had been accepted by the Jews as a compromise 
solution, but rejected by the Arabs. The Mediator 
had later stated that partition was already largely 
an accomplished fact. 

The second fact underlying the creation of the 
Jewish State was the end of the Mandate. It was 
evident at that time that there was no organ of 
the United Nations, nor any other body, capable 
of filling the administrative gap resulting from 
the departure of the Mandatory Power. It was 
obvious that the creation of the Jewish State 
had no legal connexion with the putting into 
effect of the resolution of 29 November 1947. 
In fact, when the Security Council on 1 April 1948 
decided to convene a special session of the As­
sembly, the Jews no longer took any interest 
in the appointment of a Provisional Council of 
Government as provided for in the resolution of 
29 November, for they realized that the imple­
mentation of that resolution had been outstripped 
by events and that the fate of the Jewish !State 
henceforward depended upon the Jewish people 
themselves. The resolution of November 1947 
formed a whole, which was to have been applied 
as a whole; for that reason, in May 1948, the 
Assembly could not but accept the de facto situa­
tion and try to restore peace between the two 
parties which were then already at war. 

The Danish delegation had carefully examined 
the Mediator's report (A/648) and was aware 
that its conclusions were not acceptable either 
to the Arabs or to the Jews. It would, however, 
like to challenge the two parties to submit a 
more realistic proposal. The Danish delegation 
was impartial, blaming neither the Arabs nor 
the Jews, and recognized that their contradictory 
claims formed the crux of the problem ; but it 
objected to the resort to armed force and the 
refusal of the parties to attempt pacific settlement. 

In the light of past experience, which had shown 
that there were certain limits to the real powers 
of the United Nations, the Danish delegation 
doubted whether it would be wise to rely on 
direct negotiation between the parties for a final 
solution of the problem. On the other hand, 
the Mediator's recommendation for the estab­
lishment of a conciliation commission might open 
the way to a solution, if its membership' were 
limited and it possessed wide powers. The 
seven main premises of the Mediator's report 
(A/648, part one, VIII) should form the basis 
for the conciliation commission's work. In 
addition, the consent of the two parties concerned 
would have to be the essential consideration. 

Without considering the United Kingdom draft 
resolution in detail, Mr. Federspiel thought that 
paragraph 8 of that proposal did not clearly 
indicate whether the commission was to assume 

divisee en fait en deux communautes, bien que 
leurs territoires fussent mal delimites. Le partage 
que recommandait cette Commission n'etait pas 
chose nouvelle, puisque, pendant le Mandat du 
Royaume-Uni, il avait deja ete envisage comme 
solution possible pour l'avenir. II y a un an, ce 
partage fut accepte par les Juifs comme solution 
de compromis, mais fut rejete par les Arabes. Le 
Mediateur a constate ulterieurement que le partage 
se trouvait deja dans une phase avancee de 
realisation. 

Le second fait qui est a la base de la creation 
de l'Etat juif est la fin du Mandat. II etait evident, 
a cette epoque, qu'il n'existait aucun organe, de 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies ou autre, capable 
de combler le vide administratif cause par le 
depart de la Puissance mandataire. II est manifeste 
que la creation de l'Etat juif n'a aucun lien legal 
avec la mise en vigueur de la resolution du 
29 novembre 1947. En effet, lorsque le Conseil 
de securite eut decide, le 1 er avril 1948, de 
convoquer l'Assemblee generale en session extra­
ordinaire, les Juifs ne prirent plus aucun interet 
a la nomination d'un Conseil provisoire de gouver­
nement comme cela avait ete prevu par la reso­
lution du 29 novembre, car ils se rendaient compte 
que la mise en reuvre de cette resolution etait 
depassee par les evenements et que le sort de 
l'Etat juif dependait desormais du peuple juif 
lui-meme. La resolution de novembre 1947 fonriait 
un tout qui devait etre applique integralement ; 
c'est pourquoi, au mois de mai 1948, l'Assemblee 
ne put qu'accepter la situation de fait et tenter 
de retablir la paix entre les deux parties qui 
etaient deja en 1utte a ce moment. 

Le representant du Danemark declare que sa 
delegation a examine avec soin le rapport du 
Mediateur (A/648) et qu'elle se rend compte que 
ses conclusions ne peuvent etre acceptees ni par 
les Arabes, ni par les Juifs. Elle aimerait, 
toutefois, mettre au defi les deux parties inte­
ressees de presenter une proposition plus realiste. 
Dans son impartialite, la delegation danoise ne 
blame ni les Arabes, ni les Juifs, et constate que 
leurs revendications contradictoires constituent 
le noeud du probleme ; mais elle souleve des 
objections contre le recours a la force armee et le 
refus des parties de s'engager dans la voie du 
reglement pacifique. 

Ala lumiere de !'experience passee qui a revele 
certaines Iimites dans Ies pouvoirs reels de l'Orga­
nisation des Nations Unies, la delegation danoise 
eprouve des doutes sur la sagesse qu'il y aurait a 
confier la solution definitive du probleme a des 
negociations directes entre les parties. Par contre, 
la recommandation du Mediateur tendant a creer 
une comm1sswn de conciliation permettrait 
d'entrevoir une solution, si sa composition etait 
limitee et si elle possedait de larges pouvoirs. 
Les sept postulats fondamentaux du rapport du 
Mediateur (A/648, premiere partie, VIII) 
devraient constituer la base de travail de la 
commission de conciliation. Il faudrait, en outre, 
que le consentement des deux parties interessees 
soit la consideration essentielle. 

Sans examiner en detail le projet de resolution 
du Royaume-Uni, l'orateur estime que le para­
graphe 8 de cette proposition n'indique pas clai­
rement si la commission doit assumer la respon-

745 



responsibility for the administration of Jerusalem 
or whether it was merely to encourage a degree 
of administrative autonomy. Further, a refer­
ence to the demilitarization of Jerusalem might 
usefully be added. The Danish delegation had 
noted that Arabs and Jews had shown a desire 
to protect the Holy Places and it hoped that a 
satisfactory regime would be set up for Jeru­
salem. 

l\lr. Federspiel did not exactly understand the 
mplications of paragraph 4 (a) of point C of the 
United States amendment concerning the clements 
common to both the General Assembly's reso­
lution of 29 November 19,17 and the l\lediator's 
report. Quoting a letter from Count 13ernadotte 
to the Government of Israel dated 6 July 1948, he 
stated that he found it difficult to compare the 
resolution of 29 November and the Mediator's 
report. From the legal point of view, the As­
sembly clearly could not establish any right for 
any group in Palestine, since it could only make 
recommendations and set up organs for the 
purpose of putting those recommendations into 
effect. The Assembly ought not to encourage the 
illusion that the resolution of 29 November had 
had any effect other than the political results 
which had followed from it or, rather, had taken 
place in opposition to it. 

Referring also the question of the Arab refugees, 
he observed that the United Nations had under­
taken the duty of coming to their aid. That, 
however, was only a temporary expedient, not a 
solution. A special organ should be set up to 
deal with the resettlement of the refugees and 
the compensation to be granted them, for it was 
materially impossible for the conciliation com­
mission to deal with all those matters. 

The conciliation commission should act quickly 
and the truce should be transformed into an 
armistice, and then into a final peace without 
delay. The question of compensation should 
not be considered as the least important point. 
In that connexion the United States amendment 
to paragraph 11 of the United Kingdom draft 
resolution seemed inadequate. 

In conclusion the Danish delegation appealed 
to the Jews and Arabs to consider their legitimate 
rights in a spirit of political realism and in the 
light of existing facts, rather than from a historical 
viewpoint. 

Mr. EL-Knovm (Syria) recalled that his country 
was directly interested in the Palestine question. 
At the end of the First World War Palestine had 
been detached from Syria, of which it formed a 
province, in order to serve certain imperialist 
ambitions and to enable the United Kingdom to 
carry out the promises made by Lord Balfour. 
For thirty years, the Balfour Declaration had been 
the source of all the difficulties. 

He paid tribute to certain delegations, in parti­
cular those of Pakistan, Burma, Denmark and 
El Salvador, which had expressed their views 
in a spirit of justice and ~espec~ for the Cha~ter 
and had taken into consideration the practical 
possibilities. As the representative of Denmark 

sabilite de !'administration de Jerusalem ou si 
elle doit simplement favoriser une certaine auto­
nomic administrative. De plus, une reference a Ia 
demilitarisation de Jerusalem pourrait constituer 
une addition utile a ce sujet. La delegation danoise 
a note que les Arabes et les Juifs ont manifeste 
le desir de proteger les Lieux saints et espere 
qu'un regime satisfaisant sera cree pour Jerusalem. 

M. Federspiel declare qu'il ne comprend pas 
exactement queUes sont les consequences du 
paragraphe 4 a) du point C de l'amendement 
des Etats-Unis, relatif a !'existence d'elements 
communs a la resolution de I' Assemblee du 
29 novembre 1947 et au rapport du Mediateur. 
Citant une lettre du comte Bernadotte au Gouver­
nement d'Israel, en date du 6 juillet 1948,l'orateur 
declare qu'il lui parait difficile de tracer un 
parallele entre la resolution du 29 novembre et le 
rapport du Mediateur. Du point de vue juridique, 
il est clair que l'Assemblee ne pent creer aucun 
droit pour aucun groupe en Palestine, puisqu'elle 
ne peut que faire des recommandations et creer 
des organes en vue de mettre ces recommandations 
a execution. L'Assemblee ne devrait pas encou­
rager !'illusion selon laquelle la resolution du 
29 novembre a eu quelque effet, si ce n'est les 
resultats politiques qui en ont decoule, ou plutOt 
qui se sont produits a son encontre. 

L'orateur evoque, en outre, Ia question des 
refugies arabes et fait remarquer que !'Organi­
sation des Nations Unics a entrepris Ia tache 
de leur venir en aide. Cela ne constitue toutefois 
pas une solution'; ce n'est qu'un expedient tem­
poraire. Un organe special devrait etre forme qui 
s'occuperait de Ia reinstallation des refugies et 
des indemnites a leur accorder car Ia commission 
de conciliation ne pourrait materiellement s'oc­
cuper de toutes ces questions. 

La commission de conciliation devrait agir 
rapidement et la trcve devrait etre tranformee 
en un armistice, puis en une paix definitive, sans 
delai. La question des compensations ne devrait 
pas etre consideree comme le point le moins 
important. A ce sujet, l'amendement des Et~ts­
Unis au paragraphe 11 du projet de resolutiOn 
du Royaume-Uni ne semble pas satisfaisant. 

En conclusion, Ia delegation danoise adresse 
un appel aux Juifs et aux Arabes, les invita~t 
a considerer leurs droits legitimes dans un espnt 
de realisme politique et a Ia lumiere des fa~ts 
existants, plutot que sous !'angle des fatts 
historiques. 

M. EL-KHOURI (Syrie) rappelle que son pa:>:s 
est directement interesse a la question palesti­
nienne. En effet, si Ia Palestine a ete detachee de 
Ia Syrie dont elle constituait une province, cette 
decision prise a !'issue de Ia prem~ere Gu~rre 
mondiale n'etait destinee qu'a servir certames 
ambitions imperialistes et a permettre . au 
Royaume-Uni d'executer les promesses Ia1tes 
par lord Balfour. La Declaration Balfour,.penda?t 
trente ans a ete Ia source de toutes les d1fficultes. 

M. El-Khouri rend hommage a certaines 
deleaations notamment celles du Pakistan, de 
Bir~anie du Danemark et du Salvador qui ont 
exprime ieurs vues dans un esprit de justice et 
de respect de la Charte et en s'in~pirant d~s 
possibilites pratiques. Comme toutef01s, le repre-

746 



had referred to the authority and power of the 
General Assembly, however, the exact limits of 
the General Assembly's powers in the matter 
should be borne in mind. The United Nations 
would only maintain its prestige and dignity if 
it respected the Charter as a treaty concluded 
between allies. The United Nations should 
therefore remember that it had no power to 
intervene in the administration of any territory 
except in application of Chapters XII and XIII 
of the Charter. The only case in which the United 
Nations could establish certain administrative 
regimes was that of trusteeship. But Palestine 
was not a Trust Territory ; and the termination 
of the Mandate in no way implied that Palestine 
should become a Trust Territory but rather that 
it should become independent as provided for 
in the Covenant of the League of Nations and in 
the terms of the Mandate. In accordance with 
those texts, Palestine should have been recognized 
as an independent State in which the people · 
would have drawn up their constitution by demo­
cratic means. 

The General Assembly, exceeding its powers, 
had made a recommendation dividing Palestine . 
into two, and providing for an economic union 
and a special regime for Jerusalem. That was a 
definite case of violation of the Charter and abuse 
of power by the General Assembly. Nothing 
could be more harmful to the prestige and dignity 
of the United Nations than recourse to such expe­
dients, designed to serve the interests of certain 
usurpers. 

The representative of Canada had said that the 
Balfour Declaration, erroneous as it was, was a 
decision which could not be reversed, and he had 
added that without the resolution of 29 November 
the situation would now be worse than it was. 
But it was in fact the resolution of 29 November 
which was the cause of all the disturbances and 
all the atrocities. For, if the United Nations 
had spokan as it should, it would have told the 
Jews, those immigrants and foreigners, that they 
had no right to ask for the establishment of a 
separate sovereign State and that they should 
accept the proposal made to them by the Arabs 
to allow them to live in peace in Palestine. 

In fact, the Jews had been encouraged by the 
attitude of the United Nations to occupy terri­
tories which did not belong to them, to drive out 
the rightful population, and to arrogate to them­
selves all sorts of rights. If therefore there was 
talk today of a fait accompli it should be recalled 
that it was the Zionists who had brought about 
that situation, following the unfortunate reso­
lution which had provoked bloody incidents in 
Palestine. 

Since the adoption of the resolution of 29 No­
vember 1947, half the Arab population had been 
dispersed and many Arabs had been massacred. 
The Arab representatives had, nevertheless, put 
the General Assembly on its guard and had 
.warned it of those unhappy consequences. The 
Canadian representative had also said that the 
Assembly could not repair past mistakes. If 
that attitude were adopted, the United Nations 

sentant du Danemark s'est refere a l'autorite et 
au pouvoir de l'Assemblee generale, il convient 
de se souvenir des limites exactes des pouvoirs 
de l'Assemblee generale en cette matiere. L'Organi­
sation des Nations Unies ne maintiendra son 
prestige et sa dignite que si elle respecte ce traite 
conclu entre allies que constitue Ia Charte. II 
convient done que !'Organisation se souvienne 
qu'elle n'a pas le pouvoir d'intervenir dans !'admi­
nistration d'un territoire quelconque, en dehors 
du champs d'application des chapitres XII et XIII 
de la Charte. Le seul cas dans lequel !'Organi­
sation des Nations Unies puisse etablir certains 
regimes d'administration est celui de Ia tutelle. 
Or, la Palestine n 'est pas un Territoire sous 
tutelle ; et la terminaison du Mandat n'impliquait 
nullement que la Palestine dOt devenir un Terri­
toire sous tutelle mais bien que la Palestine 
deviendrait independante comme le Pacte de 
la societe des Nations et les termes du Mandat 
le prevoyaient. Conformement a ces textes, la 
Palestine aurait dO. etre reconnue comme un 
Etat independant, au sein duquel le peuple 
aurait democratiquement choisi sa constitution. 

Or, l' Assemblee generale, outrepassant ses 
pouvoirs, a fait une recommandation qui separait 
en deux Ia Palestine, prevoyait une union econo­
mique et un regime special pour J erusalem. C'etait 
Ia un cas bien caracterise de violation de Ia 
Charte et d'abus de pouvoir par l'Assemblee 
Generale. Rien ne peut etre plus nuisible au 
prestige et a la dignite de !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies que le recours a de tels expedients, 
destines a servir les interets ;de certains 
usurpateurs. 

Sans doute le representant du Canada a-t-il dit 
que la Declaration Balfour, tout erronee qu'elle 
fllt, constituait nne decision sur laquelle il n'etait 
pas possible de revenir et il a ajoute que, sans 
la resolution du 29 novembre, Ia situation serait 
actuellement pire qu'elle ne l'est. Mais en verite, 
c'est bien la resolution du 29 novembre qui est Ia 
cause de tousles troubles et de toutes les atrocites. 
Car si !'Organisation des Nations Unies avait 

. parle Ie langage qui convenait, elle aurait dit 
aux Juifs, ces immigrants et ces etrangers, qu'ils 
n'avaient aucun droit de demander la constitution 
d'un Etat distinct et souverain et qu'ils devaient 
accepter la proposition que leur faisaient les 
Arabes de leur permettre de vivre en paix en 
Palestine. 

En fait, les Juifs se sont trouves encourages 
par !'attitude de !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
a occuper des territoires qui ne leur appartenaient 
pas, a en expulser Ies populations Iegitimes, et 
a s'arroger toutes sortes de droits; si done l'on 
parle aujourd'hui de fait accompli, il convient 
done de se rappeler que ce sont les sionistes qui 
ont amene cette situation a la suite de cette 
malheureuse resolution, qui a provoque des 
incidents sanglants en Palestine. 

Depuis !'adoption de la resolution du 
29 novembre 1947, Ia moitie de Ia population 
arabe a ete dispersee et beaucoup d' Arabes ont 
ete massacres. Les representants arabes avaient 
pomtant l'Assemblee generale en garde et l'avaient 
prevenue de ces tristes consequences. Le repre­
sentant du Canada a indique egalement que 
1' Assemblee ne pouvait redresser des erreurs 
anciennes. A envisager les choses de cette fa~on, 

747 



might as well assist the Jews in their aggression. 
What should be done, however, was to take 
account of justice and not necessarily to submit 
to the fait accompli. It should first be made clear 
whether the Jews had the right to establish 
themselves in Palestine on the expiry of the 
Mandate, in view of the international status of 
Palestine. The Syrian delegation had many 
times proposed that that question should be 
raised in the International Court of Justice, but 
that proposal had each time been rejected. The 
Arab states did not deny realities and were ready 
to admit the fait accompli but they could in no 
way legitimize a fact resulting from an illegal 
and immoral aggression. The United Nations 
might admit that it was incapable of redressing 
the fait accompli - that 'vould be a normal 
attitude - but it could not attempt to confer 
on it international legal status. 

The representative of Syria, analyzing the 
report of Count Bernadotte, noted that its recom­
mendations were not likely to bring about a 
peaceful solution of the dispute, since neither 
Arabs nor Jews could accept them. Nodoubt 
the Mediator, if he had been still alive, could have 
given advice after hearing all the delegations. 
Unfortunately, his deliberate assassination had 
been perpetrated in the fear that he might later 
change his opinion. Count Bernadotte's plan 
was hardly better than that set forth in the reso­
lution of 29 November. It gave the Jews the 
town of Jaffa, with its 90,000 Arabs, and a part 
of Galilee, peopled by 150,000 Arabs, without 
considering the consequences of that proposal 
for the population. The plan made provision 
for many compensations, hut did not say how 
they would be made. On that point, the United 
States amendment to the United Kingdom proposal 
made the situation even worse by making it 
easier for the Jews to carry out their plans for 
expropriation. 

Taking up the problem of the Arab refugees, 
he drew the Committee's attention to the fate 
awaiting those who returned to Jewish territory .. 
In that connexion he quoted a letter sent by an 
Israeli Zionist leader to an American Zionist 
which said that the Prime Minister of Israel had 
allowed certain massacres of Arabs in order to 
terrorize them and bring about their exodus. 
Moreover, it was a well-known fact that the Jews 
intended to bring millions of their people to Pales­
tine. That was why they wished to take posses­
sion of Arab territory by every means for the 
resettlement of the new immigrants. The Arabs 
were sympathetic towards the Jews who had been 
persecuted in Eastern Europe, but was that a 
reason for them in turn to persecute the Pales­
tinian Arabs ? 

He wondered how the United Nations could 
justify its action if it resulted in making the 
Middle East, for a period of years, a troubled 
land where neither Jews nor Arabs could live in 
peace. . . 

Palestine was also a Holy Land for Chnstlans. 
Did the representatives of States having a great 
number of Moslems among their nationals, and 
who had expressed views favourable to the 
establishment of the State of Israel, not take 
account of the sentiments of millions of their 

!'Organisation des Nations Unies devrait aider 
les Juifs dans leur agression. Cependant, ce qu'il 
faudrait, c'est tenir compte de la justice et non 
pas se soumettre necessairement au fait accompli. 
On doit d'abord elucider Ie point de savoir si Ies 
Juif avaient le droit de s'etablir en Palestine a 
!'expiration du Mandat, en vertu du statut 
international de Ia Palestine. La delegation 
syrienne a propose maintes fois que cette 
question flit posee a Ia Cour internationale de 
Justice, mais cette proposition a chaque fois ete 
rejetc~ . Les Etats arabes ne nient pas Ia realite et 
sont prets a admettre le fait accompli mais ils 
ne peuvent en aucune fa<;on lcgitimer un fait qui 
rcsulte d'une agression, illegale et immorale. 
L'Organisation des Nations Unies peut admettre 
qu'ellc est incapable de redresser le fait accompli­
ce serait Ia une attitude normale - mais elle 
ne pent essayer de conferer a ce fait accompli 
un statut juridique international. 

Le representant de Ia Syrie, analysant le 
rapport du comte Bernadotte, constate que ses 
recommandations ne sont pas faites pour amener 
nne solution pacifique du diiTerend, puisque ni 
lcs Arabes ni lE:s J uifs ne peuvent les accepter. 
Sans doute, Ie Mcdiateur, s'il etait encore en vie, 
aurait pu donner des conseils, apres !'audition 
de toutes les delegations. Malheureusement, son 
assassinat de propos delibere a ete perpetre dans 
Ia crainte qu'il change ulterieurement d'avis. Le 
plan du comte Bernadotte n'est guere meilleur 
que cclui prevu par Ia resolution du 29 novembre. 
II donne aux Juifs Ia ville de JaiTa, avec ses 
90.000 Arabes, ct une partie de Ia Galilee, peuplee 
de 150.000 Arabes, sans s'arreter aux consequences 
de cette proposition pour la population. Le plan 
envisage bien des compensations, mais ne declare 
pas de quelle fa<;on elles seraient faites. Ace sujet, 
l'amendement des Etats-Unis a Ia proposition 
du Royaume-Uni empire encore la situation, en 
rendant plus facile !'execution des desirs d'expro­
priation nourris par les Juifs. 

Ahordant le probleme des refugies arabes, 
M. El-Khou.ri attire !'attention de ]a Commission 
sur le sort qui attendrait ceux qui retourneraient 
en territoire juif. II cite a ce propos une. le~tre 
envoyce par un chef sioniste israelien a un swm~te 
amcricain, dans laquelle il expose que lc Premier 
l\linistre d' Israel permettait certains massacres 
d 'Arabes a fin de les terroriser et de provoquer 
leur exode. C'est un fait bien connu, d'ailleurs, 
que Ies Juifs ont !'intention d'amener des million~ 
de leurs congeneres en Palestine. C'est pourqu01 
ils veulent s'emparer des terres arabes par tous 
Ies moyens, pour y installer les no~veaux 
emigrants. Les Arabes ont de la sympath~e pour 
les Juifs qui ont etc persecutes en Europe onentale, 
mais est-ce une raison pour qu'ils persecutent 
a leur tour les Arahes de Palestine ? 

L'orateur se demande comment !'Organisation 
des Nations Unies pourra justifier son action si 
celle-ci aboutit a faire du Moyen-Orient, pendant 
des annees, un lieu de desordre ou niles Juifs, ni 
Jes Arabes ne pourront vivre en paix. . 

La Palestine est aussi une Terre Smnte pour 
Ies chretiens. Est-ce que les representants d'Etats 
qui comptent un grand nomb:e de mu~uh_nans 
parmi leurs ressortissa~~s et. qm ont expnm; des 
vues favorables a I etabhssement de .1 Etat 
d'Israel, ne tiennent pas compte des sentiments 

748 

\ 



citizens ? Could France, for example, with more 
than 20 million Arabs and Moslems, in its empire, 
support such a thesis ? Were the Christians of 
France, Belgium, England, North America and 
South America, in agreement with the policy of 
their Governments to place the Holy Land under 
Jewish domination ? Did the support granted 
the Jews against the Arabs coincide with the 
interests of the Western world ? The countries 
receiving aid from the United States under the 
Marshall Plan said that if their foreign policy was 
not in harmony with that of the United States, 
their fate would be very uncertain, especially on 
account of the conflict separating them from 
Eastern Europe. Since those countries chose to 
consider the matter from the economic point of 
view it must be pointed out to them that the 
Arabs occupied strategic positions on the Mediter­
ranean, in North Africa and on the Red Sea, and 
that in particular, they possessed vast oil fields 
without which, according to the military experts 
of the United States, the success of the Marshall 
Plan would be compromised. How would they 
organize their transport if the Arab States refused 
them petrol and how could they hope for victory 
in case of conflict ? Was it the interest of the 
United Kingdom or of the United States, to have 
the Arab States against them ? China, which had 
50 million Moslems, ought to realize that the latter 
had pronounced themselves against the Jews and 
for the Arabs in Palestine. Similarly, the 
35 million lHoslems in India, as well as the Hindus 
themselves, were convinced that the Arabs were 
defending a just cause against the Jews. It would 
be well to take into account the will of all those 
peoples of Asia and Africa which, by themselves, 
represented nearly half the world population. 
Representatives of certain States in Europe and 
America had shared the views of the Arab States ; 
but at all events the important question was not 
one of majority ; above all justice must triumph. 

He then pointed out that, in contradiction to 
what Mr. Lange, representative of Poland, had 
affirmed, the Arab States were not the tools of the 
United Kingdom or of any other State; indeed 
everyone knew that the Arab States had been 
criticizing United Kingdom policy in Palestine 
for thirty years. In the same way, the Arab 
States did not favour the cession of the Negeb to 
Transjordan. He said in that connexion that 
the future of Palestine res ted ~olely in the hands 
of it<> inhabitants who might choose, when the 
time came, to remain independent or to unite 
which one or more of the Arab States, in 
accordance with the right of peoples to self­
determination. 

The speaker recalled that Mr. Pearson, the 
representative of Canada, had proposed that the 
State of Israel should become a Member of the 
United Nations, basing himself on the fact that it 
had submitted to the decisions of the United 
Nations. But was Mr. Pearson unaware of the 
eveRts which had taken place in Palestine, of the 
violations of the truce by the Jews, of the situation 
in the Negeb and of the unshakable opposition of 

de millions de leurs citoyens ? Esr-ce que la 
France, par exemple, qui a dans son Empire plus 
de 20 millions d' Arabes et de musulmans, peut 
donner son appui a une telle these? Est-ce que les 
chretiens de France, de Belgique, du Royaume­
Uni, d'Amerique du Nord et d'Amerique du Sud, 
sont d'accord sur la politique de leur Gouver­
nement, tendant a mettre la Terre Sainte sous 
la domination juive? Est-ce que l'appui accorde 
aux Juifs contre les Arabes coi'ncide avec les 
interets du monde occidental ? Les pays qui 
re<;oivent l'aide des Etats-Unis en vertu du plan 
Marshall disent que, si leur politique etrangere 
n'etait pas en harmonic avec celle des :Etats-Unis, 
leur sort serait tres incertain, surtout en raison 
du conflit qui les separe de !'Europe orientale. 
Puisque ces pays se placent deliberement sur 
le terrain economique, il faut faire remarquer que 
les Arabes occupent des positions strategiques en 
Mediterranee, en Afrique du Nord et sur la mer 
Rouge et que, en particulier, ils possedent 
d'immenses champs petroliferes sans lesquels Ie 
sucees du plan Marshall serait compromis, aux 
dires des experts militaires des Etats-Unis. 
Comment organiseraient-ils leurs transports si 
les Etats arabes leur refusaient !'essence et 
comment pourraient-ils esperer la victoire en 
cas de conflit ? Est-ce !'interet du Royaume-Uni, 
des Etats-Unis, d'avoir des Etats arabes contre 
eux? La Chine, qui compte 50 millions de 
Musulmans, devrait se rendre compte que ceux-ci 
se sont prononces contre les Juifs et pour les 
Arabes en Palestine. De meme, les 35 millions 
de musulmans des Indes, ainsi que les hindo­
nistes eux-memes, sont convaincus que les Arabes 
defendent la bonne cause contre les Juifs. Il 
serait bon de tenir compte de la volonte de toutes 
ces populations d'Asie et d'Afrique qui, a elles 
seules, representent pres de la moitie de la popu­
lation mondiale. Des representants de certains 
Etats d'Europe et d'Amerique ont d'ailleurs 
partage le point de vue des Etats arabes, mais, de 
toute fa<;on, ce n'est pas une question de majorite 
qui importe ; avant tout c'est la justice qui doit 
triompher. 

Le representant de la Syrie fait remarquer 
ensuite que, contrairement a ce qu'a affirme 
M. Lange, representant de la Pologne, les Etats 
arabes ne sont l'instrument ni du Royaume-Uni, 
ni d'aucun autre Etat ; tout Ie monde sait, 
en effet, que les Etats arabes ont critique la 
politique du Royaume-Uni en Palestine depuis 
trentre ans. De meme, les Etats arabes ne sont 
pas favorables a ]'attribution pure et simple 
du Negeb a la Transjordanie. Il declare, a ce 
sujet que l'avenir de la Palestine repose uni­
quement entre les mains des habitants de ce pays 
qui pourront «hoisir, le moment venu, de rester 
independants ou de s'unir a un ou plusieurs 
Etats arabes, conformement au droit des peuples 
a disposer librement d'eux-meme. 

L'orateur rappelle que M. Pearson, repre­
sentant du Canada, a propose que l'Etat 
d'Israel devienne membre de !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies, en se fondant sur le fait qu'il 
s'etait soumis aux decisions de !'Organisation. 
M. Pearson n'a-t-il pas connaissance, cependant, 
des evenements qui se sont deroules en Palestine, 
des violations de la treve par les J uifs, de la 
situation dans le N egeb et de l' opposition irre-

749 



the Jews to the resolutions of the General 
Assembly ? The proclamation of the State of 
Israel was in itself a violation of the Assembly's 
resolutions of 29 November 1947 [181 (II)] and 
14 May 19,18 [186 (S-2)]. Indeed, the resolution 
of 29 November laid down certain prerequisites for 
the implementation of its recommendation for 
partition. The Jews, by immediately proclaiming 
their State, had acted in contradiction to the 
resolutions of 29 November and 14 May. How 
could the admission of the State of Israel to the 
United Nations be proposed because it had been 
recognized by certain States, when that recognition 
applied only to a de facto and not to a de jure 
authority. The Assembly had not established 
the State of Israel :the latter had been established 
by the Jews themselves and it would not be in 
accordance with Article 4 of the Charter to admit 
as a Member a mere de facto Government. 

l\Ir. El-Khouri indicated that it had been 
suggested that he should present a draft resolution. 
He recalled, in that connexion, that the Arab 
States had presented numerous draft resolutions 
bringing out that the only solution to the problem 
was the establishment of a single State including 
Arabs and Jews. The General Assembly had not 
favoured that point of view because the J ews 
did not approve it and it had decreed partition 
although the Arabs did not want it and despite 
the fact that the Mandate itself and the Balfour 
Declaration were based on the principle that 
Jewish immigration and the establishment of a 
national home for the Jews should take place 
without prejudice to Arab rights. 

He pointed out that the Arabs might legally 
have declared Jewish immigration illegal. 
However, they had accepted that the Jews of 
Palestine should remain in the country, on 
condition that they lived in peace, had the same 
rights and privileges, and shared the same fate as 
the Arabs. The J ews had refused because they 
did not want be a minority. Why then did 
they wish to force the Arabs to be a minority in 
the Jewish sector ? There were a very great 
number of religions and religious sects in the world. 
\Vas that a reason for each of those sects to form 
a State within each country ? What would the 
majority of Frenchmen say if the French 
Protestants wished to establish a Protestant State 
inside France ? And what would President 
Truman's attitude be if the Jews and Negroes of 
the United States wished to establish, within the 
United States, a J ewish or a Negro State ? 

It was clear, he continued, that the justness of 
the Arab cause could not be questioned and only 
the absence of justice and common sense among 
the representatives prevented it from triumphing. 
But it should not be forgotten that the General 
Assembly was neither a world Government, nor a 
court of justice, nor a legislative power ; it there­
fore had no right to impose recommendations or 
decisions such as the partition of Palestine. At 
present, instead of ccrrecting its initial error, the 
Assembly was getting farther and farther away 
from a just solution by attempting to correct that 
error by new errors. All the propo~:als presented 

ductible des Juifs aux resolutions de l'Assernblee 
generale? La proclamation de l'Etat d'Israel 
etait en elle-meme une violation des resolutions 
de l'Assemblee du 29 novembre 1947 [181 (II)] 
et du 14 mai 1948 [186 (S.2)]. En cfiet, Ia 
resolution du 29 novembre prevoyait certaines 
conditions prealables a Ia mise a execution de 
sa recommandation de partage. Or, les Juifs, 
en proclamant immediatement leur Etat, ont 
agi contrairement aux resolutions du 29 novembre 
et du 14 mai, Comment peut-on proposer !'ad­
mission de l'Etat d'Israel dans !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies parce qu'il avait ete reconnu 
par certains Etats, alors que cette reconnais­
sance ne s'appliquait qu'a nne autorite de fait 
et non a une autorite de droit. L'Assernblee 
n'a pas crce l'Etat d'Israel; ce dernier a ete 
etabli par les Juifs eux-mernes et il ne serait pas 
conforme a !'Article 4 de la Charte d'adrnettre 
comme Membre un simple Gouvernernent de 
fait. 

M. El-Khouri indique qu'on lui a suggere 
de presenter un projet de resolution. Il rappelle, 
a ce sujet que les :Etats arabes ont presente 
de nombreux proj ets de resolution mettant 
en lumiere que la seule solution etait la creation 
d'un Etat unique comprenant des Arabes et 
des Juifs. L' Assemblce gencrale n'a pas suivi 
ce point de vue parce que les Juifs ne l'ap­
prouvaient pas, et ellc a decrete le partage, bien 
que les Arabes n'en voulussent pas, et ce, alors 
que le Mandat lui-meme ct la Declaration Balfour 
etaient fondes sur le principe scion lequell'immi­
gration juive et l'etablissement d'un Foyer 
national juif devaient avoir lieu sans porter 
prejudice aux droits des Arabes. 

Le representant de Ia Syrie fait remarquer que 
les Arabes auraient pu declarer juridiquernent 
que les immigrations j uives etaient illegales. 
Toutefois, ils ont accepte que les J uifs de Pales­
tine puissent rester dans le pays, a condition 
qu'ils vivent en paix, aient les memes droits 
et privileges, et partagent le meme destin que 
les Arabes. Les J uifs ont refuse parce qu'ils ne 
voulaient pas etre en minorite. Pourquoi alors 
veulent-ils obliger les Arabes a etre une rninorite 
dans la zone juive? Il y a dans le monde un 
tres grand nombre de religions et de sectes 
religieuses. Est-ce une raison pour que, dans 
chaque pays, chacune de ces sectes constit~e 
un :Etat? Que dirait la majorite des Fran9a1s 
si les protestants de France voulaient creer un 
Etat protestant a l'interieur de la France ? 
Et quelle serait !'attitude du president Truman 
si Ies Juifs et Ies negres des :Etats-Unis voulaient 
creer, a l'intericur des :Etats-Unis, un Etat 
juif et un :Etat negre ? . 

II est clair, poursuit l'orat eur, que Ia JUStesse 
de la cause arabe ne peut etre mise en _dou~e, 
mais que c'est sculement le manque de JUStice 
et de bon sens des delegues qui l'empeche de 
triompher. Mais il ne faut pas perdre de vue 
que l'Assemblec generale n'est ni un Go~ver­
nement mondial, ni une cour de justice, m u.n 
pouvoir Iegislatif ; elle n'a. done pas I~ .d.rmt 
d'imposer des recommandatwns ou des decisiOns 
telles que Ie partage de la Pale?t~n.e. Ac~uellemen~, 
au lieu de corriger son erre~r mitlale •. I A~semblee 
s'eloigne de plus en plus d une solutwn JUSte en 
s'effon;ant de corriger cette erreur par de nouvelles 

750 

\ 



to the Committee were based on partition. The 
authors of those proposals knew, however, that the 
~.rabs would oppose partition. Did they then 
mtend to impose their resolutions by force, and 
how would they succeed in that ? The Charter 
of the United Nations clearly indicated that the 
Assembly had no power the carry out partition ; it 
would therefore be better to desist from a past 
error and to seek a just solution. Certain persons 
considered. themselves bound by the vote they 
had cast m 1947 but, as the representative of 
Denmark had pointed out, the situation was no 
longer the same as a year previously. When it 
w~s obvious that a mistake had been made, that 
mistake should be corrected and not perpetuated. 
The United Nations should therefore proclaim the 
truth, namely, that the only right of the Jews in 
Palestine was to accept the offer made them by the 
A:a~s to live with them on a footing of equality 
Withm the framework of a democratic State. 

Noting that the Mediator had failed in his task 
of finding a peaceful solution, he said that the 
establishment of a conciliation commissiOn 
which would not be bound by the resolution of 
29 November 1947 or by any other consideration 
was now being proposed. In the meantime; the 
problem had been laid before the Security Council ; 
perhaps that body would put an end to the 
violations of the truce by the Jews. If the conci­
liation commission had extensive powers enabling 
it to examine the situation in the light of facts and 
of justice, and if the General Assembly recom­
mended the Jews not to voice exorbitant claims 
concerning partition and prevented them from 
having recourse to the use of armed force, a 
solution to the Palestine problem might perhaps 
be found. 

He noted, moreover, that the problem of Jewish 
immigration into Palestine had been considered 
by very few speakers. He pointed out, however, 
that unlimited Jewish immigration would favour 
their criminal intentions for it would enable them 
to achieve a majority and then to claim more 
territory by the use of armed force and with the 
support of the great Powers. In that connexion 
he noted statements made by rabbis claiming for 
the Jews all the country from the Nile to the 
Euphrates. Those rabbis, basing themselves on 
alleged prophecies, also announced the punishment 
by violent death of the Egyptians and Syrians and 
said that Jewish arms would help in fulfilling the 
prophecies. Such declarations revealed the ulti­
mate intentions of the Jews. He asked the 
members of the Committee, with! full know lege of 
the facts, to do justice to those who had right on 
their side. 

Mr. GARCIA GRANADOS (Guatemala) said that 
the expedence gained in the last eighteen months 
of dealing with Pal ~?stine had shown that the only 
measures applicable were those which were 
consistent with historical requirements and the 
process of social evolution. Partition was practic­
able because it sanctioned an undeniable state 
of fact, whereas the trusteeship solution was 

erreurs. Toutes les propositions presentees a 
la Commission sont fondees sur le partage. 
Les auteurs de ces propositions savent cependant 
que les Arabes s'opposeront au partage. Ont-ils 
!'intention, des lors, d'imposer leurs resolutions 
par Ia force et comment y arriveront-ils ? La 
Charte des Nations Unies indique clairement 
que l'Assemblee n'a pas le pouvoir de mettre 
le partage a execution ; c'est pourquoi il vaudrait 
mieux revenir sur une erreur passee et chercher 
une solution juste. Certains se considerent lies 
par le vote qu'ils ont emis en 1947, mais, comme 
l'a fait remarquer le representant du Danemark, 
la situation n'est pas Ia meme qu'il y a un an, 
Quand on s'apen;oit qu'on a commis une erreur. 
on doit Ia reparer, plutot que de perseverer 
dans l'erreur. L'Organisation des Nations Unies 
devrait done proclamer la verite, a savoir que 
le seul droit des Juifs en Palestine est d'accepter 
l'offre que leur font les Arabes de vivre avec 
eux sur pied d'egalite dans le cadre d'un Etat 
democratique. 

M. El-Khouri, constatant que le Mediateur 
a echoue dans sa mission de trouver une solution 
pacifique, ajoute qu'on propose actuellement 
Ia creation d'une commission de conciliation 
qui ne serait liee ni par la resolution du 29 no­
vembre 1947, ni par aucune autre consideration, 
Entre temps, le Conseil de securite a etc charge 
du probleme ; peut-etre pourra-t-il mettre fin 
aux violations de la treve par les Juifs. Si cette 
commission de conciliation avait des pouvoirs 
etendus lui permettant d'examiner la situation 
a la lumiere des faits et de la justice, et si 1' As­
semblee generale recommandait aux Juifs de ne 
pas emettre de pretentions exorbitants relatives 
au partage et les empechait de recourir a l'emploi 
de Ja force armee, une solution au probleme 
de Ia Palestine pourrait peut-etre etre trouvee. 

M. El-Kouri constate, en outre, que Je 
probleme de !'immigration des Juifs en Palestine 
n'a ete envisage par presque aucun orateur. Il 
fait remarquer, cependant, qu'une immigration 
illimitee de Juifs favoriserait leurs intentions 
criminelles, car elle les induirait a conquerir Ia 
majorite et a reclamer ensuite plus de territoire 
grace a l'emploi de Ia force armee et du soutien 
des grandes Puissances. II signale a ce sujet des 
declarations faites par des rabbins, rcclamant 
pour les Juifs tout le pays qui s'etend du Nil a 
l'Euphrate. Ces rabbins, se fondant sur de 
pretendues propheties, annoncent egalement des 
chatiments par mort violente aux Egyptiens et 
aux Syriens et declarent que les armes des Juifs 
aideront a realiser ces propheties. De telles decla­
rations sont revelatrices des intentions ultimes 
des Juifs. En tout etat de cause, le representant 
de Ja Syrie demande aux membres de la Commis­
sion de rendrc justice a ceux qui ont le droit 
pour eux. 

M. GARCIA GRANADOS (Guatemala) constate 
que !'experience acquise depuis dix-huit mois au 
sujet du probleme de la Palestine a montre que Jes 
seules mesures applicables sont celles qui ne 
contrarient pas les imperatifs historiques et Je 
processus d'evolution sociale. Le partage etait 
realisable car il sanctionnait un etat de fait 
indeniable, alors que Ia solution de Ia tutelle 

751 



contrary to the process of evolution, which could 
not be prevented. 

Apart from that first essential condition, which 
any resolution on Palestine should satisfy, the 
legal aspect of the matter should also be taken into 
account. United Nations decisions should be 
taken in conformity with international law. In 
that respect, the resolution of 29 November 1947 
was justified because at the time Palestine was not 
a sovereign State, and the United Kingdom which, 
as the ?\Iandatory Power, exercised sovereignty, 
had requested the General Assembly to formu­
late recommendations concerning the future 
government of Palestine. On the other hand, as of 
151\lay 1948,the United Kingdom had relinquished 
its Mandate and the eventual right to transform 
the Mandate into a trusteeship. The Jewish 
people had then set up a sovereign State in 
pursuance of the resolution of 29 November 1947. 
Since then it had been recognized by certain 
Governments, but even in the absence of any 
recognition it must be considered an independent 
State, for it possessed a territory, a population, a 
legal and political organization and a parliament, 
which were the attributes of a sovereign State. 
Therefore, although in 1947 the United Nations 
could validly adopt a resolution concerning a 
non - independent State, it could not do so now 
because that would constitute an intervention in 
the internal affairs of an independent State. He 
recalled that he had already put forth that point 
of view during the special session of the General 
Assembly in May 1948 and the resolution of 
14 May had taken account of it. To approve, now, 
a draft resolution affecting the sovereignty of the 
State of Israel would be absurd. 

Analyzing the United Kingdom proposa 
(A/C.1 J394) he declared it to be incompatible with 
the two conditions he had formulated. The only 
paragraphs acceptable would be the part of the 
preamble paying tribute to Count Bernadotte 
and paragraphs 12 to 15 inclusive which dealt 
with questions of procedure. The paragraphs 
dealing with the internationalization of Jerusalem 
and the Arab refugees were too rigid in form and 
did not take account of the facts. The Guate­
malan delegation reserved the right, in this 
connexion, to submit the necessary amendments. 
Nor could it accept paragraphs 2, 3, 5 and 10, 
which were definitely political, for they proposed 
that the United Nations should fix boundaries and 
arrange for territorial annexations, when it had 
not the means to impose such annexations. By 
what right could the United Nations propose to 
seize territories from the Jews which the latter 
possessed by virtue of a United Nations decision ? 

The United States amendments proposing the 
deletion of those paragraphs were drafted in 
such a way as to contradict the principles expressed 
by the United States representatives on 
20 November 1948, namely, that the boundaries 
of the State of Israel prescribed in the resolution 
of 29 November 1947 could not be altered without 

contrariait cette evolution que l'on ne peut 
empecher, 

Outre cette premiere condition essentielle, a 
laquelle toute resolution concernant la Palestine 
doit satisfaire, il convient de tenir compte ega­
Iement de !'aspect juridique de Ia question. Les, 
decisions de !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
doivent etre prises conformement au droit inter­
national. Dans cet ordre d'idees, la resolution du 
29 novembre 1947 etait fondee car, a I'epoque, 
Ia Palestine n'etait pas un Etat souverain et 
le Royaume-Uni qui, en tant que Puissance 
mandataire, exen;ait la souverainete, avait 
demande a I' Assemblee generale de formuler des 
recommandations au sujet du gouvernement 
futur de Ia Palestine. Par contre, depuis le 
15 mai 1948, le Royaume-Uni a renonce a son 
Mandat et au droit eventuel de transformer 
son mandat en tutelle. Le peuple juif s'est 
constituc a cette date en Etat souverain en se 
fondant sur la resolution du 29 novembre 1947. 
Il a, depuis lors, etc reconnu par certains Gouver­
nemrnts, mais meme en !'absence de toute recon­
naissance il devrait etre considcrc comme un Etat 
indcpendant car il possede un territoire, une 
population, une organisation j uridique et politique, 
parlement, qui sont les attributs d'un Etat 
souverain. Si done !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies a pu valablement adopter une resolution 
en 1947 ayant trait a un Etat non independant, 
elles ne pourrait agir de rneme aujourd'hui car 
cela constituerait une intervention dans les 
affaires interieures d'un Etat independant. 
L'orateur rappelle qu'il a deja expose ce point de 
vue lors de Ia session extraordinaire de l' Assemblee 
generale en mai 1948, et que Ia resolution du 
14 mai a tenu compte de ce point de vue. II serait 
absurde d'approuver aujourd'hui un projet de 
resolution portant atteinte a Ia souverainete de 
l'Etat d' Israel. 

Analysant Ia proposition du Royaume-Uni 
(AJC.1/394), M. Garcia Granados constate qu'elle 
n'est pas compatible avec les deux conditions 
qu'il a formulees. Les seuls paragraphes 
acceptables seraient Ia partie du preambule 
rendant hommage au comte Bernadotte, ainsi 
que les paragraphes 12 a 15 qui traitent de 
questions de procedure. Les paragraphes ayant 
trait a l'internationalisation de Jerusalem et aux 
refugies arabes sont trop rigides et ne tienne~t 
pas compte de la realite. La delegation du Guate­
mala se reserve a ce sujet de presenter les amen­
dements necessaires. Quant aux paragraphes 
2, 3, 5 et 10, qui ont un caractere netteme~t 
politique, ils sont inacceptables car ils en;l­
sagent que !'Organisation des Nations U.mes 
determine des frontieres et provoque des annexwns 
territoriales, alors qu'elle n'a pas le moyen 
d'imposer ces annexions. De quel droit !'Organi­
sation voudrait-elle ravir des territoires aux 
Juifs, alors que ceux-ci les possedent en ;ertu 
d'une decision de !'Organisation elle-meme ? 

Les amendements des Etats-Unis tendant ·a 
sup primer ces paragraphes sont. re.diges de telle · 
far;on qu'ils sont en contrad1cbon avec les 
principes enonces par le repres~ntant .des :Etats 
Unis le 20 novembre 1948, a savmr que les 
frontieres de l'Etat d'lsrael envisagees par Ia 
resolution du 29 novembre 1947 ne pourraient 
etre rectifiees sans le consentement des Is~aeliens. 

752 



the consent of the Israeli people. The United 
States amendments, which explicitly stated that 
they took into account the Mediator's report, 
revealed the same defects and raised the same 
danger of intervention in the internal affairs of the 
State of Israel which they were designed to avoid. 

The representative of Guatemala stated that the 
draft resolution submitted by Australia (A/C.l/ 
396) conformed to the principles of international 
law and that his delegation would vote in favour 
of it. However, in view of the fact that the 
United Kingdom proposal (A/C.l/394) had been 
sudmitted first, and that if it were adopted even 
by only a small majority the Australian proposal 
might possibly not be voted upon, the Guatemalan 
delegation submitted an amendment (AJC.l/398) 
to the United States amendment (AJC.lj397) to 
the United Kingdom proposal. This amendment 
also contained a paragraph taken from the 
Australian draft resolution concerning the 
admission of the State of Israel to the United 
Nations. 

Mr. Garcia Granados stated in conclusion that 
without foreign intervention the Jews and Arabs 
would have been able to settle their problems long 
ago and live in peace. They must be encouraged 
to do so, and it was to be hoped that in the future 
those two sister peoples would be able to co-oper­
ate for the maintenance of peace and the strength­
ening of the United Nations. 

Mr. ZuLOAGA (Venezuela) proposed that the 
meeting scheduled for that evening should be 
postponed until the following morning. 

The proposal was adopted by 20 votes to 5, with 
8 abstentions. 

The meeting rose at 6.05 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED 
AND TWELFTH MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Thursday, 25 November 1948, at 10.30 a.m. 

Chairman : Mr. A CoSTA nu RELS (Bolivia). 

81. Continuation o~cussion on 
the progress report of the United 
Nations Mediator on Palestine 
(A/648) 

The CHAIRMAN read the list of speakers and 
declared that the general discussion would be 
closed after they had spoken and that the 
discussion would then proceed on the various 
draft resolutions and amendments. 

Mr. MuNIZ (Brazil) said that Palestine was 
of universal concern because it was the cradle 
of three great religions and was situated at 
the crossroads of the world where the political 
interests of the great Powers converged. The 
latter fact was sufficient in itself to create 
tension in Palestine and to this had been added in 
later years the conflict between two nationalisms. 
The United Nations had assumed a grave respons-

En effet, les amendements des Etats-Unis, qui 
tiennent compte explicitement du rapport du 
Mediateur, presentent les memes defauts et 
comportent les memes risques d'intervention 
dans les affaires interieures de l'Etat d'Israel 
qu'ils se proposaient d'eviter. 

Le representant du Guatemala constate que 
le pro jet de resolution presente par I' Australie 
(A/Cl/396) est conforme aux principes du droit 
international et declare que sa delegation votera 
en faveur de cette resolution. Toutefois, constatant 
que la proposition du Royaume-Uni (AJC.l/394) 
a ete presentee en premier lieu et que dans le 
cas ou elle serait adoptee, ne fut-ce que par 
une faible majorite, la proposition australienne 
courrait le risque de ne pas etre mise aux 
voix, la delegation du Guatemala presente 
un amendement (A/C.l/398) a I'amendement 
des Etats-Unis (AJC.l/397) ala proposition du 
Royaume-Uni. Cet amendement contient egale­
ment un paragraphe extrait du projet de reso­
lution de l'Australie tendant a !'admission de 
I'Etat d'Israel au sein de !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies. 

M. Garcia Granados conclut que, sans inter­
vention etrangere, les Juifs et les Arabes auraient 
pu depuis longtemps resoudre leurs problemes 
et vivre en paix. II fait les encourager dans cette 
voie, dans l' espoir que deux peuples freres 
pourront cooperer a l'avenir pour le maintien de 
la paix et pour le renforcement de !'Organisation 
des Nations Unies. 

M. ZULOAGA (Venezuela) propose de reporter 
la seance prevue pour le soir au lendemain matin. 

Celie proposition est adoptee par 20 voix contre 
5, avec 8 abstentions. 

La seance est levee a 18 h. 5. 

DEUX-CENT-DOUZIEME SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillol, Paris 
le jeudi 25 novembre 1948, a 10 h. 30. 

President: M. A. CosTA. nu RELS ;(Bolivie). 

81. Suite de la discussion sur le rapport 
interimaire du Mediateur des Na­
tions Unies pourla Palestine (A/648) 

Le PRJ~SIDENT lit la liste des orateurs inscrits 
et declare que lorsqu'ils auront pris la parole, 
la discussion generale sera close. La discussion 
aura ensuite pour objet les divers projets de 
resolution et amendements. 

M. MuNIZ (Bresil) declare que le probleme de 
la Palestine preoccupe le monde entier, parce 
que ce pays est le berceau de trois grandes 
religions et se trouve a Ia croisee des chemins 
de l'univers, ou se confrontent les inten~ts 
politiques des grandes Puissances. Ce dernier fait 
aurait suffi pour creer de la tension en Palestine, 
mais, au cours des dernieres annees, i1 est venu 
s'y ajouter le conflit de deux nationalimes. 

753 
48 




